

INTERNATIONAL STANDARD



**Boxes and enclosures for electrical accessories for household and similar fixed electrical installations –
Part 22: Particular requirements for connecting boxes and enclosures**

Document Preview

[IEC 60670-22:2024](#)

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024>





THIS PUBLICATION IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED
Copyright © 2024 IEC, Geneva, Switzerland

All rights reserved. Unless otherwise specified, no part of this publication may be reproduced or utilized in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and microfilm, without permission in writing from either IEC or IEC's member National Committee in the country of the requester. If you have any questions about IEC copyright or have an enquiry about obtaining additional rights to this publication, please contact the address below or your local IEC member National Committee for further information.

IEC Secretariat
3, rue de Varembe
CH-1211 Geneva 20
Switzerland

Tel.: +41 22 919 02 11
info@iec.ch
www.iec.ch

About the IEC

The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is the leading global organization that prepares and publishes International Standards for all electrical, electronic and related technologies.

About IEC publications

The technical content of IEC publications is kept under constant review by the IEC. Please make sure that you have the latest edition, a corrigendum or an amendment might have been published.

IEC publications search - webstore.iec.ch/advsearchform

The advanced search enables to find IEC publications by a variety of criteria (reference number, text, technical committee, ...). It also gives information on projects, replaced and withdrawn publications.

IEC Just Published - webstore.iec.ch/justpublished

Stay up to date on all new IEC publications. Just Published details all new publications released. Available online and once a month by email.

IEC Customer Service Centre - webstore.iec.ch/csc

If you wish to give us your feedback on this publication or need further assistance, please contact the Customer Service Centre: sales@iec.ch.

IEC Products & Services Portal - products.iec.ch

Discover our powerful search engine and read freely all the publications previews, graphical symbols and the glossary. With a subscription you will always have access to up to date content tailored to your needs.

Electropedia - www.electropedia.org

The world's leading online dictionary on electrotechnology, containing more than 22 500 terminological entries in English and French, with equivalent terms in 25 additional languages. Also known as the International Electrotechnical Vocabulary (IEV) online.

International
Standards
Document Preview
standards.iteh.ai

[IEC 60670-22:2024](https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024)

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024>



IEC 60670-22

Edition 2.0 2024-12
REDLINE VERSION

INTERNATIONAL STANDARD



**Boxes and enclosures for electrical accessories for household and similar fixed electrical installations –
Part 22: Particular requirements for connecting boxes and enclosures**

Document Preview

[IEC 60670-22:2024](https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024)

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024>

INTERNATIONAL
ELECTROTECHNICAL
COMMISSION

ICS 29.120.10

ISBN 978-2-8327-0113-3

Warning! Make sure that you obtained this publication from an authorized distributor.

CONTENTS

FOREWORD.....	3
1 Scope.....	6
2 Normative references	6
3 Terms and definitions	6
4 General requirements	8
5 General notes remarks on tests	8
6 Ratings.....	9
7 Classification.....	9
8 Marking	9
9 Dimensions.....	10
10 Protection against electric shock	11
11 Provision for earthing	11
12 Construction	11
13 Resistance to ageing, protection against ingress of solid objects and against harmful ingress of water	12
14 Insulation resistance and electric strength	12
15 Mechanical strength	13
16 Resistance to heat.....	13
17 Creepage distances, clearances and distances through sealing compound.....	15
18 Resistance of insulating material to abnormal heat and fire	16
19 Resistance to tracking	16
20 Resistance to corrosion	16
21 Electromagnetic compatibility (EMC)	16
Annex AA (informative) Examples of connecting boxes/enclosures	17
Annex BB (informative) Schematic presentation of connecting devices as a basis for the definitions	19
Annex CC (normative) Additional requirements for boxes and enclosures exposed to direct sunlight	20
Annex DD (normative) Additional requirements for connecting boxes and enclosures having encapsulation capability	21
Bibliography.....	26
Figure 101 – Single terminal device	14
Figure 102 – Multiway terminal device	14
Figure AA.1 – Four examples of connecting boxes/enclosures	17
Figure AA.2 – Examples of cable joints	18
Figure BB.1 – Schematic presentation	19
Table 101 – Relationship between rated connecting capacity and test current	15
Table 102 – Creepage distances, clearances and distances through sealing compound	15

INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

**BOXES AND ENCLOSURES FOR ELECTRICAL ACCESSORIES FOR
HOUSEHOLD AND SIMILAR FIXED ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS –****Part 22: Particular requirements for connecting boxes and enclosures**

FOREWORD

- 1) The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is a worldwide organization for standardization comprising all national electrotechnical committees (IEC National Committees). The object of IEC is to promote international co-operation on all questions concerning standardization in the electrical and electronic fields. To this end and in addition to other activities, IEC publishes International Standards, Technical Specifications, Technical Reports, Publicly Available Specifications (PAS) and Guides (hereafter referred to as "IEC Publication(s)"). Their preparation is entrusted to technical committees; any IEC National Committee interested in the subject dealt with may participate in this preparatory work. International, governmental and non-governmental organizations liaising with the IEC also participate in this preparation. IEC collaborates closely with the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) in accordance with conditions determined by agreement between the two organizations.
- 2) The formal decisions or agreements of IEC on technical matters express, as nearly as possible, an international consensus of opinion on the relevant subjects since each technical committee has representation from all interested IEC National Committees.
- 3) IEC Publications have the form of recommendations for international use and are accepted by IEC National Committees in that sense. While all reasonable efforts are made to ensure that the technical content of IEC Publications is accurate, IEC cannot be held responsible for the way in which they are used or for any misinterpretation by any end user.
- 4) In order to promote international uniformity, IEC National Committees undertake to apply IEC Publications transparently to the maximum extent possible in their national and regional publications. Any divergence between any IEC Publication and the corresponding national or regional publication shall be clearly indicated in the latter.
- 5) IEC itself does not provide any attestation of conformity. Independent certification bodies provide conformity assessment services and, in some areas, access to IEC marks of conformity. IEC is not responsible for any services carried out by independent certification bodies.
- 6) All users should ensure that they have the latest edition of this publication.
- 7) No liability shall attach to IEC or its directors, employees, servants or agents including individual experts and members of its technical committees and IEC National Committees for any personal injury, property damage or other damage of any nature whatsoever, whether direct or indirect, or for costs (including legal fees) and expenses arising out of the publication, use of, or reliance upon, this IEC Publication or any other IEC Publications.
- 8) Attention is drawn to the Normative references cited in this publication. Use of the referenced publications is indispensable for the correct application of this publication.
- 9) IEC draws attention to the possibility that the implementation of this document may involve the use of (a) patent(s). IEC takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of any claimed patent rights in respect thereof. As of the date of publication of this document, IEC had not received notice of (a) patent(s), which may be required to implement this document. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information, which may be obtained from the patent database available at <https://patents.iec.ch>. IEC shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights.

This redline version of the official IEC Standard allows the user to identify the changes made to the previous edition IEC 60670-22:2003+AMD1:2015 CSV. A vertical bar appears in the margin wherever a change has been made. Additions are in green text, deletions are in strikethrough red text.

IEC 60670-22 has been prepared by subcommittee 23B: Plugs, socket-outlets and switches, of IEC technical committee 23: Electrical accessories. It is an International Standard.

This second edition cancels and replaces the first edition published in 2003 and Amendment 1:2015. This edition constitutes a technical revision.

This edition includes the following significant technical changes with respect to the previous edition:

- a) addition of cable joints as a new type of box with the related tests and requirements;
- b) addition of tests and requirements for boxes and enclosures exposed to direct sunlight with the related Annex CC;
- c) addition of connecting boxes and enclosures having encapsulation capability as a new type of boxes with the related tests, requirements and related Annex DD.

The text of this International Standard is based on the following documents:

Draft	Report on voting
23B/1535/FDIS	23B/1553/RVD

Full information on the voting for its approval can be found in the report on voting indicated in the above table.

The language used for the development of this International Standard is English.

This document was drafted in accordance with ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2, and developed in accordance with ISO/IEC Directives, Part 1 and ISO/IEC Directives, IEC Supplement, available at www.iec.ch/members_experts/refdocs. The main document types developed by IEC are described in greater detail at www.iec.ch/publications.

A list of all parts in the IEC 60670 series, published under the general title *Boxes and enclosures for electrical accessories for household and similar fixed installations*, can be found on the IEC website.

This document is to be used in conjunction with IEC 60670-1:2024. It lists the changes necessary to convert that standard into a specific standard for connecting boxes and enclosures.

Where this document states "addition", "modification" or "replacement", the relevant requirement, test specifications or explanatory matter in IEC 60670-1:2024 shall be adapted accordingly.

Clauses and subclauses, notes, figures or tables which are additional to those in IEC 60670-1:2024 are numbered starting from 101.

Additional annexes to IEC 60670-1:2024 are numbered AA, BB, etc.

In this publication the following print types are used:

- requirements proper: in roman type.
- *test specifications: in italic type.*
- notes: in smaller roman type.

The committee has decided that the contents of this document will remain unchanged until the stability date indicated on the IEC website under webstore.iec.ch in the data related to the specific document. At this date, the document will be

- reconfirmed,
- withdrawn, or
- revised.

IMPORTANT – The "colour inside" logo on the cover page of this document indicates that it contains colours which are considered to be useful for the correct understanding of its contents. Users should therefore print this document using a colour printer.

iTeh Standards
(<https://standards.iteh.ai>)
Document Preview

[IEC 60670-22:2024](https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024)

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/iec/66cef388-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024>

BOXES AND ENCLOSURES FOR ELECTRICAL ACCESSORIES FOR HOUSEHOLD AND SIMILAR FIXED ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS –

Part 22: Particular requirements for connecting boxes and enclosures

1 Scope

Clause 1 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition:

Add the following after the ~~fourth~~ third paragraph:

This document applies to junction connecting boxes ~~for junction(s) and/~~ or tapping ~~(s)~~ connecting boxes or both.

NOTE Unless otherwise stated, throughout the document the term "boxes" also applies to "enclosures".

2 Normative references

Clause 2 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following additions:

IEC 60998 (all parts), *Connecting devices for low-voltage circuits for household and similar purposes*

IEC 60999-1:1999, *Connecting devices – Electrical copper conductors – Safety requirements for screw-type and screwless-type clamping units – Part 1: General requirements and particular requirements for clamping units for conductors from 0,2 mm² up to 35 mm² (included)*

[IEC 60670-22:2024](https://standards.iteh.ai/IEC/60670-22/2024)

<https://standards.iteh.ai/ISO/62/2008/8-3840-48f0-a7b4-faaf75c6ef5f/iec-60670-22-2024>

ISO 178:2019, *Plastics – Determination of flexural properties*

ISO 179-1:2010, *Plastics – Determination of Charpy impact properties – Part ~~4~~ 1: Non-instrumented impact test*

ISO 4892-2:2013, *Plastics – Methods of exposure to laboratory light sources – Part 2: Xenon-arc lamps*

ISO 4892-2:2013/AMD1:2021

3 Terms and definitions

Clause 3 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following additions:

3.101

connecting box

junction box

box allowing connection of conductors

3.101.1

junction connecting box

connecting box allowing connection of one or more junctions

3.101.2**tapping connecting box**

connecting box allowing connection of one or more taps from one or more main conductors

Note 1 to entry: Connecting boxes according to 3.101.1 and 3.101.2 may be combined.

3.101.3~~**cord outlet connecting box**~~~~connecting box allowing one or more connections to be made between a fixed installation and a flexible cable~~**3.102****connecting box with integrated clamping units**

~~connecting box~~ box allowing connection of conductors in which clamping units are permanently retained as an integrated part of the box (see Annex AA)

Note 1 to entry: For example, see Figure AA.1

3.103**connecting box with incorporated terminals or connecting devices**

~~connecting box~~ box allowing connection of conductors with detachable terminals or connecting devices retained within the box by mechanical means (see Annex AA)

Note 1 to entry: For example, see Figure AA.1

3.104**connecting box with provisions for subsequent incorporation of terminals or connecting devices**

~~connecting box~~ box allowing connection of conductors with provisions for incorporating terminals or connecting devices to be retained within the box by mechanical means (see Annex AA)

Note 1 to entry: For example, see Figure AA.1

3.105**connecting box for floating terminals or connecting devices**

~~connecting box~~ box allowing connection of conductors intended to accommodate terminals or connecting devices but without provision to retain them (see Annex AA)

Note 1 to entry: For example, see Figure AA.1

3.106**rated connecting capacity**

cross-sectional area of the largest conductors as declared by the manufacturer

3.107**terminal**

conductive part of one pole comprising one or more clamping unit(s) and insulation if necessary

3.108**clamping unit**

part(s) of a terminal necessary for the mechanical clamping and the electrical connection of the conductor(s) including the parts which are necessary to ensure correct contact pressure

3.109**connecting device**

device for the electrical connection of two or more conductors comprising one or more terminals and if necessary, insulation and/or ancillary parts

Note 1 to entry: For a schematic representation of connecting devices see Figure BB.1 of Annex BB.

3.110 cable joint

connecting enclosure provided with cable glands (or other means) having cable anchorage function, intended to make a connection between two or more insulated cables to form a continuous circuit in the fixed installation

Note 1 to entry: For example, see Figure AA.2

3.111 junction

connection between two or more conductor ends

3.112 tapping

connection of a conductor end (called "tapped conductor") on any point of another conductor (called "main conductor")

Note 1 to entry: The main conductor is not interrupted.

3.113 CBEC connecting box having encapsulation capability

box allowing the connection of conductors and intended to encapsulate the clamping units, terminals or connecting devices with an encapsulating compound

3.114 encapsulating compound

material to encapsulate the clamping units, terminals or connecting devices in CBEC

4 General requirements

Clause 4 of IEC 60670-1:2024 is applicable with the following addition:

Connecting devices incorporated in connecting boxes shall comply with the requirements of the IEC 60998 series; integrated clamping units shall comply with the requirements of ~~the IEC 60999 series~~ IEC 60999-1:1999.

NOTE 101 In the following countries terminal blocks according to IEC 60947-7-1 and IEC 60947-7-2 are allowed to be incorporated in connecting boxes: DE.

5 General ~~notes~~ remarks on tests

Clause 5 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition:

5.2 Add at the end of Subclause 5.2:

Connecting boxes with provision for subsequent incorporation of clamping units are tested with the clamping units recommended by the manufacturer.

Connecting devices that are in accordance with the IEC 60998 series ~~need~~ are not required to be tested again.

NOTE 101 In the following countries terminal blocks according to IEC 60947-7-1 and IEC 60947-7-2 ~~need~~ are not required to be tested again: DE.

NOTE 2102 In the following countries connecting boxes shall be tested either:

- with their incorporated terminals or connecting devices or
- with the terminals or connecting devices recommended by the manufacturer for connecting boxes with provision for subsequent incorporation of terminals or connecting devices: UK.

6 Ratings

Clause 6 of IEC 60670-1:2024 is replaced by the following:

6.1 The preferred values of the rated voltage of the integrated or incorporated connecting devices are 125 V, 250 V, 300 V, 400 V, 500 V, 600 V, 690 V, 800 V, 1 000 V AC and 1 500 V DC.

6.2 The standard rated connecting capacities are 0,2 mm², 0,34 mm², 0,5 mm², 0,75 mm², 1 mm², 1,5 mm², 2,5 mm², 4 mm², 6 mm², 10 mm², 16 mm², 25 mm², 35 mm².

NOTE 4101 For the time being, designation by wire gauge may be used in some countries (for example AWG in US and CA), instead of the cross-sectional areas expressed in mm².

NOTE 2102 The approximate relation between mm² and AWG sizes is given in Annex A of IEC 60999-1:1999.

NOTE 3103 In UK, a standard connecting capacity of 1,25 mm² is used.

NOTE 4104 In Japan, standard connecting capacities of 0,9 mm², 1,25 mm², 2,0 mm², 3,5 mm², 5,5 mm², 8 mm², 14 mm², 22 mm² are used.

7 Classification

Clause 7 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition:

Add the following to Table 1:

7.101 The method of fixing the terminals or connecting devices in the connecting box	7.101.1 With integrated clamping units	
	7.101.2 With incorporated terminals or connecting devices	
	7.101.3 With provisions for subsequent incorporation of terminals or connecting devices	
	7.101.4 Without fixing (for floating terminals or connecting devices)	
7.102 The capability to encapsulate the clamping units, terminals or connecting devices	7.102.1 Without the capability to encapsulate the clamping units, terminals or connecting devices	
	7.102.2 With the capability to encapsulate the clamping units, terminals or connecting devices (see Annex DD)	

8 Marking

Clause 8 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following additions:

8.1 General

Add after j):

~~k) rated insulation voltage for boxes with integrated or incorporated terminals or connecting devices (see note 1);~~

~~l) rated connecting capacity (see notes 1 and 2);~~

~~m) maximum number of conductors to be placed in the box (see notes 1 and 2).~~

~~The information l) and m) are optional for boxes classified according to 7.101.4.~~

~~n) Boxes and enclosures classified according to 7.101.1 or 7.101.2 shall be marked with an appropriate rated current which does not exceed the test current given in Table 101.~~

~~NOTE 1 In the case of:~~

~~— integrated clamping units, k), l) and n) should be marked on the boxes;~~

~~— incorporated terminals or connecting devices, the marking k), l) and n) if marked on the box or on the incorporated terminals or connecting devices, should be visible during installation;~~

~~— empty boxes for floating terminals or connecting devices classified according to 7.101.4, the marking l) and m), if marked on the box, should be visible during installation.~~

~~NOTE 2 The manufacturer may mark or declare more than one combination of l) and m). This information is mandatory for boxes classified according to 7.101.4 in the following countries: DE and SE.~~

Add the following after list item k):

l) rated voltage for boxes with integrated or incorporated terminals or connecting devices;

m) rated connecting capacity (see Note 101);

n) maximum number of conductors to be placed in the box (see Note 101);

The information in items m) and n) is optional for boxes classified according to 7.101.4.

The manufacturer may mark or declare more than one combination of m) and n).

NOTE 101 In the following countries this information in Subclause 8.1 is mandatory for boxes classified according to 7.101.4: DE and SE.

o) boxes and enclosures classified according to 7.101.1 or 7.101.2 shall be marked with an appropriate rated current which does not exceed the test current given in Table 101.

NOTE 102 In the following country the marking of the rated current is optional: DE

Add the following subclauses:

8.101 Symbols

When symbols are used they shall be as follows:

Volt V

Rated connecting capacity mm² or □ or AWG

8.102 Instructions for cable joints

Information shall be given in the manufacturer's instructions that cable joints are not intended for portable use or for being buried underground. These instructions are not required to be provided with the product.

9 Dimensions

Clause 9 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies.

10 Protection against electric shock

Clause 10 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies.

11 Provision for earthing

Clause 11 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies.

12 Construction

Clause 12 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following modifications:

12.2.1 *Add the following after the first paragraph:*

In connecting boxes where the fixing means of covers or cover-plates serve also to fix the connecting device, ~~it~~ the fixing means shall maintain the connecting device in the correct position after removal of the cover or cover-plate.

Compliance is checked by inspection.

12.3 Drain holes

Add after the last paragraph:

This Subclause 12.3 does not apply for cable joints.

12.7 Boxes and enclosures with a cable anchorage(s)

Subclause 12.7 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition before Figure 12:

For the purpose of cable joints, the test of 12.7 is repeated with rigid cables as specified in the instructions.

Add the following subclauses:

12.101 Connecting boxes shall have adequate space to allow the correct connection of conductors which are specified in the relevant clauses of the particular requirements of ~~Parts 2 of IEC 60998~~ IEC 60998-2-1, IEC 60998-2-2, IEC 60998-2-3, and IEC 60998-2-4 concerning the number and cross-sectional area of the conductors.

For connecting boxes classified according to 7.101.1, 7.101.2 and 7.101.3, compliance is checked by fitting the maximum number of conductors of the maximum cross-sectional area if that is the worst-case combination. If not, the most unfavourable combination shall be checked.

This test shall be carried out in conjunction with that of 12.102.

~~*For boxes classified according to 7.101.4 the test is made only if l) and m) of 8.1 are marked or declared.*~~

For boxes classified according to 7.101.4 compliance is checked by fitting the maximum number of conductors and connecting devices as declared in 8.1 m) and 8.1 n). The test is carried out only if m) and n) of 8.1 are marked or declared.

12.102 Retention means for terminals or connecting devices shall withstand the mechanical stresses occurring during installation and normal use.

Compliance is checked by connecting conductors in accordance with ~~the relevant Part(s) 2 of IEC 60998~~ IEC 60998-2-1, IEC 60998-2-2, IEC 60998-2-3 or IEC 60998-2-4 as applicable for the type of the connecting device used.

After the test there shall be no harmful deformation, cracks or similar damage which would lead to non-compliance with this document.

12.103 Connecting boxes classified according to 7.101.1, 7.101.2 and 7.101.3 shall comply with the temperature rise requirements of 16.102.

12.104 Cable joints shall be classified according to 7.4.2, having means for cable anchorage, and provided with cable glands or other means as defined by the manufacturer.

Compliance is checked by inspection and by the test of 12.7.

NOTE IEC 62444 is applicable to cable glands for electrical installations.

13 Resistance to ageing, protection against ingress of solid objects and against harmful ingress of water

Clause 13 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition:

13.3.3 Replace the last paragraph by the following:

The specimens, except connecting boxes classified according to 7.101.4, shall withstand an electric strength test specified in 14.2 which shall be started within 5 min of the completion of the test according to this Subclause 13.3.3.

14 Insulation resistance and electric strength

Clause 14 of IEC 60670-1:2024 applies with the following addition:

Add the following:

14.2.101 For boxes with integrated or incorporated terminals or connecting devices, the measurements are made consecutively as indicated below.

Each clamping unit of a connecting device shall be tested when connected ~~alternatively~~ with conductors of the smallest and tested when connected with connectors of the largest cross-sectional area.

The insulation resistance is then measured with a DC voltage of approximately 500 V applied, the measurement being made 1 min after application of the voltage:

- a) between all clamping units connected together and the body for connecting devices without fixing means or between all clamping units connected together and the mounting base for connecting devices with fixing means;
- b) between each clamping unit and all others connected to the body for connecting devices without fixing means or between each clamping unit and all others connected to the mounting base for connecting devices with fixing means.

The metal foil is applied in such a way that the sealing compound, if any, is effectively tested.

The insulation resistance shall be not less than 5 MΩ.